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Plan and Procram Announced
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Bosfon, Mass.

For the hardy conventioners of the Organ His-
torical Society & unique arrangement has been
made this year whereby our conventien will be
held directly following a three-day A.G.O. regional
meel (June 18-2#) which will include events of
interest to our members. In order to accomplish
this it was necessary for cur committee to adjust
the dates we had originally pianned for our own
convention, and therefore attention is called to
our new dates of June 21, 22 and 23,

Boih prog.ams have been planned te aveid any
duplication, and arrangeronts have been made

- for the maximum convenience of those planning

to attend both gatherings. In addition, the new
schedule will permit those wishing to see more of
New England's most historic c¢ity to do so.

@®. H. 8§ DETAILS

The 8 H. S. convention will begin Wednesday,
June 21, with a registration pericd at 9a.m. in
the parish hall of St. Paul's Cathedral, 136 Tre-
mont Street, in downhtown Bosten, St. Paul’s may
be reached by public transporiation from any
part of the metropolitan area. While there are
commercial parking lots nearby, it is recommend-
ed that drivers leave their cars at their lodgings
and arrive at headquarters sy subway. The Park
Street station of the subway is almost directly
opposite the Cathedral

During the registration meriod there will be
gpporiunity to get together o talk and examine
exhibits, Members having exhibit items (scrap-
books, picture collections, nameplate collections,
old bocks, magazines and other “organabilia”)
are invited to bring these for exhibition, properly
marked as to identification of subject matlier as
well as ownership., Exhibitors are asked to notify
the commitiee in advatce se that sufficient space
will be availatile. In addition, the A.G.O. displays
will remain assembled for our enjoyment for the
first day of eur convention.

Not only will there %e the double -exhibition
at our headguarters, but the Boston Public Library
on Copley Square has arranged a fuii-sized lobby
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display on organs for the entire month of June,
and conventioneers are urgek to visit this exhibi-
tion which will contain much of the valuable ma-
terial belonging to the library. Also the Society
fer the Preservation of New England Antiguities
is plannineg a display of pertineni holdings which
includes many items ef interest to O.H.S. members.

THE BUSINESS MEETING

At 10:30 a. m. the business meeting will con-
vene at headgquariers. 41l of the very latest devel-
opments, including those having to do with the
establishment of cur permanent headquarters at
York, Pa, and plans for Incorporation, will be
discussed, and the results of the balloting will be
anncunced. This is an impaortant year in the life
of our grganization. All members are urged 1o at-
tend this meeting.

A luncheonr will follow the business meeting at
12 neon, after which all duly registered conven-
tioners wiil bescd a bus for the first organ tour.

THI WEDNESDAY TOUR

Leaving St Paul’s we shall spend the afternoon
in downtoewn Boston and the Back Bay grea.
Oreans to be visited include the famous “Ceronn-
tion” organ, once owned by hymn-writer Oliver
Holdern, in historic Old State House;, an 1852
Geerge Sicvens in the old Mariner’s Church; an
1877 electrilied Johnson in St. Mary’s Church;
an 1854 Stevens chambor organ, new bheing re-
storec, in the Preservation Scciety; a large 1859
Hook at All Saings' Lutheran Church; and the
jarge Hook in Immaculate Ceanception Church
where a short recital of French music will be
heard. While it was eleetrified in 1888, this magp-
nificent French-styls instrument, designed by J.
R. Willeox {(he of “Thunderstorm” fame!l), re-
mains entirely unaltered tenally, and stands in a
building ideal fer sound.

The bus wil
5:30 p. n1., and w¢

return  to headguarters at
suggest that members avail
themselves of the severa) excellent restaurants
neardy for supper. A Hst of these will be made
available at registration time.



DON PATERSON’S RECITAL

At T:15p. m. we will reconvene at First Uni-
tarian Church, Jamaica Plainn. This is easily
reached by taking the Huntington Avenue troiley
out of Part Streebt station to Centre & Eliot
Streets in Jamaica Plain. Here a unique situation
is found since this is the only known town in
America where one can find three 3-manual or-
gans of the same bullder, all over a century old,
within a few blocks sf each other. First Untlarian
has one, 2 Hook of 1854, and the others are in First
Baptist (1859), and St. Thomas Aquinas (1834).
The latter organ once stogd in St. Paul's Cathe-
dral, our headquarters church. We shall visit the
two last-named organs by foot, returning to First
Unilarian by 8:30 p.m. {or a recital by our vice-
president, Donald R. M. Paterson, whose demon-
strations were so well received last year in Philz-
delphia. After the recital there will be oppertun-
ity to examine this organ as well

THE TIHURSDAY TOUR

The bus will leave headguarters Thursday
morning at $a.m., and our tour will cover signifi-
cant organs in South Boaston, East Bostorn, and
Charlestown. In South Bosten, organs {o he seen
will include an 1871 Joel Butler rebuild of a larger
older srgan in St. Augustine’s Church and a small
Woodberry & Harris in the chapel of the same
chureh; an 1861 Hook in Fourth Presbyterian; an
1870 Hook in the Methodist Churceh of Our Savior;
and an 1874 Hook, recently completly restored,
in 8t. Vincent's Church. Organs in East Beston
will include a large 1854 Simmons in Most Holy
Redeemer Church; a circa 1870 Simmons in the
Assembly of Goed Churchi; and a Butler of the
same peried in First Presbyterian. On the way
back we shall stop at Charlestewn to see the largs
1877 Moritz Baumgzrten ergan in St. Catherine’s
Church, believed to be the only remainine example
of this Builder’s work. Lunch will be grranged en
route,

NEW CONVENTIOXN FEATURE

The bus will return to headguarters at 4 p. m.
for a type of program new to O.H.S. conventions,
This will be a panel discussion and denmonstration
of voicing, restoration. and other interesting fa-
cets.of the organ-builder’s art, led by Charles Fisk
of the Andover Organ Company, Raymond Whalon
of the Welte-Whalen Organ Company, and others.
This should prove a unique experience, and a
chance to acquire muek uwseful information. Sup-
per hsur (at deswntown restaurants) is seheduvled
for 6 p. m.

OL® NORTII CHURCH CONCERT

The Thursday evening event hegins at 8p. m.
This will be a concerled program with John Fes-
perman and the OId North Singers & Players at
O1ld North Chureh, 193 Salem Strect, in the North
End. The program, in the form ef an evening
service, will be given under candlelight in this his-
toric and beautiful eld church, and will include
choral and instrumental music, some by early
New England conmiposers. An informal cofiee hour
will be held follewing the srogram, with oppor-
tunity to see the organ. a Hutchings-Plaisied or

Stevens of the 1870's, rebuilt in 1358 by Schlicker,
standing behind the original Themas Johnston
case of 1752-59.

MIDXIGHT REVELRY
At midnight a special treat i3 in store in the
form of a theatre party at “The Met”, 268 Tremont
Street, site of one of Boston's best and “mightiest”
theatrs srgans. Qur hosts will ve the members of
the local chapier, AT.0.E, and OH.S. members
will have a chance to “let their hair down.”

THE FRIDAY TOUR

Leaving headquarters at 9a m., the Friday
tour will be by autemobile and last ail day through
the zreg betwern Boston and Worcester, Mass.,
with lunch provided en route. Organs Lo be seen
will {neclude sn 1869 Simmons in the beautiful
“Builfinch” Church (First Unitarian) in Lan-
caster; and 1847 George Stevens in Shirley Centre;
two other Stevens organs, dating from the 1850,
in Harvard and Still River; anether from the
1870°s in the Historical Society of Narthbeoro; an
1851 William Simmons in the Baptist Church of
Framingham; and an 1876 Johnson and another
Stevens of the 1850’s in Saxonville, in the Catho-
e and Congregational Churches, respectively. .

GEORGE FAXON'S RECITAL

We shali arrive in Worcester in time for sup-
per, and at 8:30 p.m. George Faxon will present
a reeital for us on the large 4-manual electrified
E & G. G. Hock organ of 1864 irn Mechanics Hall:
This is Worcester's eriginal 18th century concert
hall, possibly the only such hall still in use in near-
original condition. It is noted for ils fine acous-

tics, and Mr. Faxon’s program will be one long G,

be remembered, an event nad to be missed.

A.G.0. REGIONAL DETAILS

For the benefit of these wishing to come early
far the A.G.Q. regienal meeting, some of the high-
lights of this convention will include a perform-
ance of Beethoven's "Missa Sclemnis” on Sunday
evening. June 18; a special concert of the Boston
“Pops” in Symphony Hall on Monday evening fea-
turing works for organ and orchestra; and a re-
cital at St. Patl's Cathedral by Ray Ferguson at
7 p.m. on Tuesday, follawed by 2 performance of
the “Play of Daniel” on Boston Common at 8:45
p. m. Other events include a tape lecture on his-
toric organs by E. Power Biggs; a program with
positive and instruments by Witllam McGowan,; a
lecture by Lawrence Phelps: and vavious tours
and workshops.

TIE SAD NEWS

Due to the increased expenses occasioned hy
more bus tours, meals, and advertising this year,
it has become necessary to increase the registra-
ion fee for sur O.H.8. convention to $10.00, pay-
able at the time of registration only. Pleasc do
not send any money with your enroliment reserva-
tion. For those who cannot spend all three days
al. the convention the fee is $3.50 per day. We
expect a record twrnout this year, and it is there-
fore wurgent that all conventioners enroll as
promptly as possible s¢ that your commiltee can
complete its reservations and plans. Therefors,
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EDITORIAL

It will prowably please no one for us to bring
up the subject of money, but in these days of
high costs of everything the need fer hard cash
i5 an ever increasing one--even by such ogut-of-
this-world organizations as the Organ Historieal
Soclety.

For five years, marked by splendid grewth and
development and illumihated by successful effarts
in the preservation of historical organs, we lhave
met our financial ohligations satisfactorily, At
first the work was carried en entirely by contri-
butions, and the generosity of our members was
adegualie to the needs. Then, as we grew into a
better organized sociaty, regular dues were levied
against all members; but contributions were still
sought and continued to come in over and above
the annual dues. Thus we were able to improve
our guarterly newsletter from a mere mimeo-
graphed sheect to the handsome printed magazine
ysu are now reading.

But now comes the time for greater growth
and development, The need for incorporation is
an imminent one, and the funds available are in-
adeguate. The cost of establishing our headquar-
ters at York, Pa,, is not a matter of a single outlay,
but rather the adoption ef a regular annual ex-
penditure that may increase as time gees on. These
are only two of many vital reguirenients if we are
to continue our effective werk and achieve any
of our goals.

There are two ways that the financial crisis
may be met: (1) to incresse our membership from
roughly 200 to 500 or even 1,090, and (2) to in-
¢rease our membership dues. The National Coun-
¢il will present a plan regarsing dues at the Bos-
ton convention, but every member should welgh
the matter carefully ané give counsideration tg the
needs of the Sscicly as a whaole.

The A.G.Q. has just doubled ifs annual dues out
of “necessity”, and it has over 15,000 members.
What are we going to do about it?

May 30 has been set as the deadline for mailing
the enclosed eurellment form,

If you wish to atfend the A.G.O. regional con-
vention also, and are 1ot a member of a New
England chapter, please indicate your desire 'on
the enclosed form and information will be sent to
yeou.

WHERE 1@ STAY

It has ween decided not Le have an official
hotel this year. However, for thoss with no sther
plans, we would recommend the Lenox at 61 Fxe-
ter Strest, which has singles from $6.75 to $5.00
and doubles freim $9.95 to $13.00. The YMCA is at
316 Huntington Avenue, with rooms at $2.50, $3.50
and 84.00; and the YWCA is at 140 Clarencon
Street, with rooms at $4.00 and $5.00. ANl three
places are near sach other and the deowntown
area, and are convenient te conmmercial parking
lots and the Baeck Bay railroad station. June is a
busy month fer hotels in Bosten, so we suggest
that yeu write for your reservations early.

We look forward to speing a large and en-
thusiastic group in Boston in June. The city that,
for two centurics, has been the center of the
organ-building industry in New England offers
many unique atiractions to all those interested in
the ergan and its histery, from whatever stand-
point. Let’s join tegether ifo enjoy them.

Your 1681 Convention Committee:

Nelsen C, Barden, ¢chairman
Sally Slade Warner

John Ken Ogasapian

Alan Laufman

Barhara J. Owen

a

THE CHANDOS CHAPEL ORGAN
By . R. Webber

Some time age the Rev'd. Robert Hunsicker,
vicar of St. Paul's Chapel, New York, enguired for
infermation regarding the organ built for the
chapel of the Duke of Chandos, Canons, England.
The chapel was demolished generatiens ago, but
it turns out that the organ was remeved in 1748
and still exists (or did until a few years ago) in
Holy Trinity Churceh, Gosport. The organ is one of
fifty or more upon which Handel reputedly com-
posed “Messiah’!

At Great Witley there is a church with a three-
manual, 28 rank organ with an exceptionally beau-
tiful case, and a console within & semi-circular
tribune of exquisite scale and detail. This is often
called the “Chandos organ,” and here again Han-
del composed “Messigh”! This error i no doubt
due to the fact that the windows and fine ceiling
cf Great Witley came from the Chandos chapel,
and the legend has becn hreadened to include the
organ, tog, however wrongly.

Perhaps some of our British members can
shed additional light on the subject of the Chan-
gos organ.

- - . e o

Enclosures

With this issve of THE TRACKER will be found two
enclosures impartant to all members of Q.H.S. Thess
are:

1. THE BALLOT . Whether you plon 1o abtend
the anaua) meeling in Boston or not it i5 your re-
sponsibifily to cast your vole for the election of
officers. Immadiate action is imperative, so plecse !
mail your fillad-in baflet af once.

-

2. ENROLLMENT - The advence enrollment regi-
stration form for the 6th annval Q.H.S. Conventien,
June 21-23, ot Boston, Moss. D@ NOT SEND
MONEY WITH THIS FORM. Plecase mail it nol later
than May 30

|
L — X
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OLD ORGAN —

NEW HOME

By Robert J. Reich

Taunton, Massachusetts, like many New Eng-
land cities, has become more and more strongly
Roman Catholic as the years have passed. This
has led to the closing of some Pratestant churches
and merging of others. First Methodist in Taun-
ton combined with Memorial Methodist and, since
1957, the old First Methodist huilding has been
unused. This is a large wooden structure of a
modified colonial design. The organ was made in
1869 by William Stevens, East Cambridge, Mass.,
and had remained in almost perfect condition. Its
resources are as follows:

GREAT (56 notes) SWELL (enclosed)

8 Open Diapason 16’ Bourdun te

8 Hohl Flote tg 8 Open Diapason tc

8 Keraulophen tg 8" Clarabella Treble te

8" Duleiana ty 8 Stopped Diapasen Bass
8’ Stopped Diapason Bass 8" Viol de Gumba

4’ Principal 4’ Principal

4’ Wald Flute tc 8" Hautboy te (capped)

2 23 Twelfth Pedal Check

2’ Fifteenth Tremulo

PEDAL (27 notes)
16’ Double Open Diapason
(13 pipes)

Couple Great and Swell
Couple Pedal and Great
Couple Pedal and Swell

Originally there had been a 20-note pedal key-
board with the top seven keys playing the pedal
pipes an octave lower. Toward the end of the
19th century. W. K. Adams of Providence, R. I,
added the larger pedal! Kkeyboard and coupler
mechanism for the additicnal notes, but left the
pedal pipes and action as they were. Otherwise,
the organ seems to be entirely in its original con-
dition.

Efforts had been made for several years to
find buyers for the building andsor the organ,
but in the summer of 1960 the old building re-
mained in the hands of the church with the
lower floor rented for storage purposes to a paint
manufacturer, and the organ upstairs was un-
touched.

Meanwhile things were happening at the Bap-
tist Church in Brentwood, N. H. Brentwood is a
small community spread out so much that the
village itself is just a tiny cluster of houses, and
both its churches are isolated miles from the vil-
lage. The Baptist Church is a small red brick
structure built perhaps 100 years ago. Until recent
years its only musical instrument was a piano.
Several years ago, however, an electronic instru-
ment was purchased. It gave almost continuous
trouble and offended some people with its tone.
In the sumimer of 1960 the church people decided
something must be done about an organ, despite a
large recent expenditure for a new parish hall
Many felt the only answer lay with the purchase
of a different electronic substitute, but the min-
ister and a few others wanted a real organ.

Through the Rev’d. Harry G. Ford, pastor of
the Excter Baptist Church, the people of Brent-
wood learned of the Taunton organ. They sent a

it
AP
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committee to examine it and _soon afterwards ar-
ranged to purchase it. A plan was worked out
with the Andover Organ Company for the moving
of the organ. According to this plan the church
would provide a crew of volunteers to assist in the
work and the Andover Organ Co. would provide
supervision and expert workers as neeQed.

In July 1960, a crew of five from Brentwood
and two from the Andover Organ Co. arrived in
Taunton and began dismantling the organ. Three
days later it was loaded into the largest available
rentes truck and a station wagon. After a long
trip, marrecd only by a small truck fire, the organ
reached Brenlwood about 11 p.m. and was un-
loaded in less than an hour by an enormous crew
of volunteers.

During the next few days the necessary modi-
fications were made to the church and the organ
began to take shape in its new home. For the en-
tire four wecks the project occupied three teen-
age boys came every day and learned about many
organ builder’s skills in the process, such as how
to wind tracker wires, how (Lo asemble and adjust
tracker action, and how to clean pipes. Scveral
older people took care of the wiring, blower loca-
tion and connection, front pipe gilding, and modi-
fications to the church building, as well as help-
ing with the organ erection.

As part of the project all damaged parts were
replaced or repaired. All pipes were clecaned, re-
paired, and adjustced for proper speech. Felt and
bushings were replaced where necessary and new
leather nuts applicdd throughout. No changes or
modifications were macde. The organ fits tightly
into its allotted space; indeed, the longest pedal
pipz had to be shortiened by three inches and two
of the case ornaments had to be removed.
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During the installation many of the chuich
people dropped in from time to time, Some were
thrilled with the imposing appearance of the
organ. Others, especially thoss who nad been sp-
posed te il from the beginning, thought it too
large and that it spoiled the churei’s interior.
Certainly it dominates the front of the ehurch, al-
though placed at one side. Tt is a very large orgun
for the building and, excepl for a few city church-
es, the largest in any Baptist church in the sitate
of New Hampshirc.

On Sunday afternoon, July 3%, 1958, a speacial
service of dedicalion was held The Rev'd. Guy M.
Judkins, pastor, dedicated the organ, followed Wy
a soprano sole by Mrs. Judkins, The Rev’'d, Harry
G. Ford played the following organ program:

Prelude and Fugue in E minor {(“The Cathedral™)
J. S. Bach

Partita on “My Jesus Y will not forsake” - Walther

Cheral Prelude “Praise Ged tegether, ye Chris-
tians” - Buxtehude

Choral Prelude “Our Father who art in Heaven™ -
Jd. 8. Bach

Four Choral Preludes: “O Dearest Jesus” - Brahuns
“RBlessed are ye faithful seuls”
“A lovely rose is blooming™
“O werld, I now must_leave thee”

Chaconne - Couperin

So great was the interest in the new instru-
ment that the church was filled slmost to capacity
and comments seemed te he of the most faverable
kind. At this writing, almest six months later, the
report is that the church is now unanimously in
favor of the action faken in getting a real organ,
even those initizlly opposed.

The Brentwood Baptist Church has sct an ex-
ample which should be of widespread interest.
They have shown thait even o very small country
church, if it is active encugh and has enough peo-
ple who really care, can have s fine orzan and
necd not scttle for a substitute. In this case, the
total expense for the organ was less than the cost
of even the cheapest substitute. The supply of
second hand tracker organs of moderate size and
good tonal guality seems to be great enough so

that many other small churches eould solve their

organ probléms by a similar means.

Py S——

Big News in 1804

Ed. Note: A clipping from an unknown Boston
newspaper dated Decemboer 16, 1884, describes
Hutehings' Opus 138 which replaced the organ now
located in Organ Hall, Mcthuen, Mass. We quote
the articie in its entirety:

“THE NEW BMUSIC HALL OXGAN”

“The removal of the big" organ {rom Music
Hall eaused much discussion, and the tasis which
caused the vacant space I¢ft by the removal to be
covered with cheap-leoking drapery hus becen
severely criticised. As the hall was useless for

oratorio performarnces, the directors felt that it
was necessary to do something {e prevent the
Hande! and Haydn Society from leaving the hall
whiczh had se long been its home, and accordingly
a contrast was made with My, George 5. Hutchings
to puild an organ, which, to distinguish it from
the #1¢ one, will probably se knswn as the “litile”
ergan.

“It is placed in a room over the green room, a
little above the level of the second gallery on the
left side of the hall. An archway has been cut in
the wall, and a balcany thrown out in front, as
has heen seen Dy every one who has been in the
hai! this season. This elevaled position will neces-
sarily destraoy much f the effect which the In-
strument would produce if mere advantageously
placed, but Mr. Hutchings says that it is » power-
ful organ,

“It will be completed on Satwrday and be used
for the firgt time at the Handel and Hayén So-
eiety’s performance of “Messiah” on Sunday even-
ing. The organ has only a shigle manual, of the
simplest construction, and without any pneumatic
appliances. Its specification is as follows:

“Manual - Compass C to C4

1 Double open diapason 16 feei 61 pipes
2 Dalciana 6 61
3 Open daipasen 8 6L "
4 Open diapason 8 g
& Doppel flote 8 o1 "
6 Vieclz da Garba 8 " 61
7  Stopped Diapason g - 61
8 Iulciana g8 7 61
9  QOectave 4 " 1) S
10 Flute harmwonigue 4 a1l "
11 Twelfth 2 2/8 7 6L
12 Fifteenth 2" 61 7
18 Rixture 4 yanks 244 7
14 Mixture 3 ” 183 7
15 Mixture 3 " 83 7
16  Dolee Cornet 4 7 244 7
17 Trumpet & feet 61
1B Troumpet 8 49 ¥
18 {larion 4 " 1
*Fredal - Compass C tc ®
20  Contra bourdoen 32 fTect woed 30 pipes {sie)
21 Double encn diapason I\ A {t B
22 Bourdon 16~ o800 "
23 Vialone 16 - 1: B
24  Quinte 19 2/3 7 SO {1 B
25 Flete g 30 "
2¢  Vielencello 8  metal 30 7
27  Qctuve S #3060
28 Trombone 16 7 wood 30 7 !
”Alechanicals
29 Manuale to pedal rouples

Blower’s signal *

“Pedal Mevements

1 Forte combination, with anpropriate pedal eombination
2 Mezzo combinntion, with apprapriate pedal combination
8 Piand combinativn, with appropriate pedal combination
4  Charus orgay sepatation

5 Celave coupler nuanuale

¢ Octave coupler pedals

7 Balaneed swell pedals

Nos. 2, 4, 7, 8, 10, and 16 zre enclozsed in a swell bex”

PACE §
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Notes, Quotes and
Comments

President Barbara J. Owen has given numerous
lectures, llustrated with color slides, on the his-
tory of the organ in America during the past win-
ter. Among these were engagements with the At-
lanta, Ga., Chapter AGGO on February 20 (with a
recital on a ¢ 1895 Felgemaker it Redecmer Lu-
theran Churchy; the music department of Shor-
ter College, Rome, (Ga., on February 22; the Brock-
ton, Mass, Chapter AGO on February 27 (with a
recital on an 1888 Hook in the Swendeubargan
Church of Bridgewater); and the Pittsfield, Mass.,
Chapter AGO on March 13. She alse gave a recital
on the 1858 Giles Beach organ in the Preshyterian
Church at Gloversville, N. Y., on April 16,

* *  *

Richard Hill gave & recital on the Cole &
Woodbury organ in the Unitarian Chuarch of West
Bridgewater, Mass., on March 5 We wish he had
sent his program for inclusion here.

* *® *

On a recent trip to Virginia Al Robinson saw
the “Father Smith” (Bernard Schmidl) organ of
¢. 1865 in eld St. Luke's Church, four miles south
of Smithiield, Va. on Reute 10. The church, dating
frem ¢. 1632, has undergone a remarkable restora-
tion, and the ergan, said to be one of four still
extant, was presented by Queern Elizabeih.

* * *
John Ken Ogasapian gave a recital on the
Johmnson organ in  Liberty Street Methedist

Church, Springficld, Mass,, on Marchi 19. No detalls
about the instrument were included witll this
notice, regrettably,

* L3 k]

Reminder is offercd that members will be re-
sponsible for their own hosel accommodations in
Boston. Sece the feature article about the conven-
tion for complete details and sugegestiens.

* * *

We are now ready to begin to receive material
for the library at our hendgunarters inn York., Pa.
All material must be sent to Kenneth F. Simmaons,
223 Popular Avenue, Wayne, Fa. Do not mail ma-
terial directly to York. It order to keep things in
good form and preper order we de 1ot want to re-
eeive more or larger articles than we can aecom-
modate. Therefore it is best to clenar with Mr. Sim-
mons befere making shipments of sizable articles.

If you have a few small items which you would,

like te contribute you may send them without
enquiring; but if you have a large number of items
or a particularly large article please write and see
whether or not we can process thom now or at
what dale we can accepl them.

£ L3 *
Barbara J. Owen writes: “Genc MeCracken's
article entitled ‘The Spirits Cost $0.75" s a guod
piece of research, and most interesting. Isn't it

frustrating to track an organ down {o some recent
point, only to have it vanish into thin air? Maybe
it will shew up in some totally unexpected place
in time, like the Schuylervillie ergan Bob Reich
#escribed in the same issue. There is the .same
problem with the Bowdoin Street church in Bos-
ton - first it had a 3m Appleton, then it had an
even larger 3m Simmons. Then suddeunly it has
merely a little Im, followed by a4 medium 2m. The
buiiding is still there, the records of its ithree
former owners incomplete or missing, and two
large 3dm organs apparently disappeared without
a trace! I have tackled the situation from any
numbver of angles - all dead ends.”

* L] *

At this writing there are no new itemns to add
to the “Organs for Sale” list published in the
January issue of THE TRACKER. Since it fre-
quently happens that sudden and drastic changes
accur in the status of that list it is advisable to
contact the co-ordinator of this material for la-
test information;

Alan Lauwfman
West Hill
Putney, Vermont

* * *

Material fer THE TRACKER is needed to keep
the interest of our publicatisn f{resh and appeal-
ing, Articles, news items, and dedicatory pro-
grams are alwzys welceme. Send your contribu-
tions to the Editor today!

Have you drought any new membeors inte the
(LIS, this year? One of the best inducements is
to invite them {o the Sixth Annual Convention in
Boston. We suggest you extend the invitation
early so that you can enroll for them by the dead-
line - May 30. Additional enrcllment forms may
be oblained from ihe Secretary.

® * ¥

Dow’t forget to vote! Much time will be saved
at the annual meeting If all members mail their

pallots in prior te the convention. Mail yours
today.

v - -
'

t

! BACIK 1SSUES OF

{

THE TRACKER

As we go to press we enlicipote completion of the
reprints of all numbers in Volumes 1 and 1, now
available from the saerctary ot 25 cents the copy.
Some orders for the complete set could not be filled
and money had to be refunded, but now all of the
first two volumes (the mimeographed sefs) con be
ordered.

Some of the printed copies of Yalumes I, IV ond V
are also available af 50 cents the copy, but a letter
of inquiry ws 1o the exact numbers desired would be
the wisest oction.

— -

When ordering plcase add 10 cents for ewch four
issues ordered te help defrey cost of mailing, and
be sure to give your correct nome and address.

[ -
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TRACING AN ORGAN'S HISTORY

By Albert F. Robinson

Some years ago I served as organist in Holy-
rood Chureh, New ¥York City, and pilayved upon a
large and ponderous instrument which bhore the
nameplate of Reuken Midmer. I was told, how-
ever, by the organ mainfenance man, Charles
Mayer, that Midmer had rebuiit that instrument
from a Henry Erben which once stood in old St
John’s Chapel on Varick Streect, New Yark.

There was no Organ Historical Soeiety then,
and, finding no one clse interested in the organ's
history and little avallable informotion about it,
my own Interest lagged and research stupped.

Years later it was sommehow my fate te substi-
tute there, and with the interest generated by
work in the Organ Hislorical Socicty I began
again to make ingquiries into the organ’s erigin
and histery. Mr, . R, Wobber wrote me as follows
regarding the organ formerly in St. Jolin’s, Varizk
Strect;

“Theilr first organ was the famous John Lowe,
which was captured in transit by the British in
1812 and held for ransom, which Trinity Parish
had to pay. Themas Hall was sent frsm Philadel-
phia to install it, and Henry Erben. then 12 years
old {or 13 at maosi) helped him, and became bit-
tenn by the srgan ‘bug’ until he died at 84 years.

“Their second organ was a Tnsmas Rohichn ef
three manuals and 28 ranks with two oclaves of
pedals, suilt about 1839, Frith & Hall, & music
store, handled the centract, and employed Rob-
john te build it. This organ had a Choir section
arranged Ruck-positiv fashion. Latoer Erben did
the same thing at Trinity Church, and Ferris did
it at Broadway Tabernacle. Thus there woere at
least three Ruck-positivs in Manhattan alone, and
long before Holtkamp’s day. This organ was re-
moved in 1874, and its Great section went to one
church, the Swell to anothier, and the front pipes
to a Presbyterion Church in upper Manhatian. It
was listed in 1861 as a three manual, 28 rank in-
strument, sut W. B. Gilberi calls it a three-
manual, 20 rank as foliows: Great 8 stops, Swell 6
steps, Choir 5 stops and Fedal 1 stop. :

“In 1874 Henry Erben built a three-manua),
3¢ stop organ for St. John's Chapel of the follow-
ing design: Great 13 stops, Swell 11 steps, Choir
& stops, and Pedal 4 stops. This may he the one
in Holyrood, If T amn not mistaken, the Brben was
still in St. John’s when the chapel was demolished.
Does this check with the ergan as you knew jt?”

Well, it certainly does; and the specification
of the Holyrood organ follows:

GREAT

14 Open Diapazon
8 Open Diapason
8 Viol di Gawba

8" Stopped Diapason
8 Duleiana

4’ Qctave

4 Wald Flute
2 2/3 Twellih
2 Fifteenth
17T Mixture

{1 Sesqguialtera
B Trumpet

4 Clarien

PEDAL Il Cornet

32 Resultant 8’ Cornepean

18" Open Diapasen 8 Qboe

1#" Bourdonm 8 Vox Humana

2 Violaneello CHOIR

SWELL 8’ Open Diapason
16 Bourden 8 Melodia

8 Open Idapason 3 Stopped Diapason
8 Biapped Diapason ®° Dulciana

%' Salicional 4 Prineipal

B Avoline 4’ Flantn Traverse
4 Fugara 2" Fifteenth
2" Piceolo 8’ Clarinet

Midmer had provided a new console with vari-
celored tae steps, a full set of eouplers and a
rather unreliable electric action. During the 1930’s
the entire organ was usable although its condi-
tion was not first class, The mutations and mix-
tures were never tuned and the reeds {except the
Ohoe) were badly in need of re-voicing. But the
Diapasorns had a soft, velvety quality and the
Thutes were clear and pure.

Holyrood Churceh stands at the corner of 178th
Street and Fort Washington Avenue at the George
Washington Bridge-head. It is a lofty Gothic
building with peculiar acoustics which, while
deadly to all but the maost distinet spoken word,
preved flattering to most sounds ef music. It was
begun in 1912 and finished in 1615 when Washing-
tonn Heights was a fashionable residential area.
But with the bullding of the George Washington
Bridge and its opening in 1932 the pepulation
moved elsewhere leaving Holyrood all but deserted
by the end of Werld War IL In recent years a re-
newed effort has been made to preserve iis life,
and some degree of suceess {8 being realized.

Unfortunately the Erben-Midmer gradually
wore ont. First the Choir manual became useless,
and later the Great and Swell disintezrated. The
church was forced into action ane, seeking the
least costly course, chinge an eleclronic substitute.
The manufacturer is said to have allowed a small
sum for the old organ, and thal is the end of the
tale.

Needless to say, the substitute is proving fat
from satisfactory, and there are many who wish
that the Organ Historical Society (or one of Its
gualified members) had been censulted before ac-
tion: was taken.

.This is probabtly a typical situation, and our
members necd to busy themselves in finding out
more of them before the time when there are no
more worthwhiic organs to sreserve.

Don'i forget to VOTE!

Your hallot is important to the Society. A true elec-
tion is an cxpression of all the members. Mail yours
today!

LT -
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A silver plaque attached to the organ case in
Dublin Community Church, Dublin, New Hamp-
shire, reads “Presented by Solomon Piper, Esqr.
Boston, March 2d, 1853.” Mr. Piper was born in
Temple, N. H,, in 1789, and lived in the village of
Dublin from his fifth year to the age of twenty-
one, when he removed to Boston.

The history of the church begins with the his-
tory of the town. In the beginning Town and
Church were ene. Voters created the Church and
supported it by public taxation and their own
Jabors.

The original Jand grant was issued to Matthew
Thornton in 1749, and his brother William became
the first settler in 1752. Until 1771 the town meet-
ings and church services were held in private
homes, but that year the first meeting-house was
opened and Joseph Farrar was called to serve as
minister.

A second meetinghouse was built in 1818, and
this was replaced by the present structure, erected
in 1852,

The organ was built by Elias and George G.
Hook of Boston in 1853 and is the one hundred and
fifty-third instrument made by this famous firm
of organ builders. While it was one of the smaller
organs bhuilt by the Hook brothers, it possessed 4
silvery and cohesive tone-quality and served for 85
years In its original condition. In 1938 the march
of “progress” caused the congregation to purchase
an electronic intrument, and the Hook fell into
disuse and becamie the victim of vandalism.

Edgar A. Boadway visited Dublin in 1958 and,
after carcful examination, urged the church au-
thorities to restore the 105-year old Hook organ.
Subsequently the firm of IIale & Alexander of
Short Falls, N. H. was engaged to restore the organ
and repair all the damaged parts. They also
cleaned and regulated the pipes and installed an
electric blower to supersede the old hand pump.
It is now one of the eldest organs still in use in a
KNew Hampshire church.

4

There is but one manual of 54 keys with a com-

pass from CC to F3, and four ranks of pipes di--

vided into six stops, as follows:

Duleiana 8" 37 pipes
Melodia Treble 8 37 pipes
Stop’d Diapason Bass 8 17 pipes
Principal Treble 4 37 pipes
Principal Bass 4’ 17 pipes
Fifteenth 2’ 54 pipes

The organ was re-dedicated at a special serv-
ice on June 21, 1959, by the Rev’d. Lyman V. Rut-
ledge, minister. Elliott S. Allison, organist of the
church, arranged a most impressive dedication
service program, and Edgar A. Boadway played
the following shert recital:

Fugue in E major ...
Chorale and Two Vmatlona

“Why Should Cross and

Trial Grieve Me?"” ... J. G. Walther
Cherale and Prelude:

“Deck Thyseclf, My Soul,

with Gladness” ....Johannes Brahms

During the receiving of the offerings Mr. Allison

played six 16th and 17th century hymn-tunes, the

program containing his registration as follows:

Psalm 5 (1612) Melodia Treble and Stop’d Diapa-
son Bass

Winchester Tune (1621) Dulciana and Stop'd Dia-
pason Bass

Winchester Old (?) Mclodia Treble, Dulciana and
Stop'd Diapason Bass

York Tune (1640) Dulciana, Fifteenth and Stop’d
Diapason Bass

St. Flavian (1562) Melodia Treble, Principal Tre-
ble, Stop’'d Diapason Bass and Principal Bass

Dundee (1615) Bulciana, Principal Treble, St,opd
Diapason Bass and Principal Bass

The offering was donated to the Albert Schweitzer
fund.

Other hymn-tunes sung in the service were
“Duke Street”, “Mear”, “St. Martin’'s”, “Old Hun-
dredth”, “Federal Street”, “Aurelia”, “Wmdsox"
“America”, and “Dennis”. Mr. Rutledges sermon
was followed by remarks about the Organ Histori-
cal Society by Mr. Boadway.

.J. 8. Bach

Ed. Note: Edgar A. Boadway is now in Germany
serving in the Armed Forces. He reports enthusi-
astically about the fine organs he occasionally
plays when “on leave,” and will undoubtedly have
many interesting stories to tell upon his return.

v v

MAY 30?h
IS THE DEADLINE

for mailing your convention enrollment. Be sure to
indicate what days you will attend. If you need more
blanks for frieads write to the Secretary. If you are
uncertain as to whether you can attead, write this

in your comments.

-
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